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Bo a rd o f Go ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e a nd

Me mb e rs o f Ma na g e me nt

Truma n Sta te Unive rsity

We ha ve a ud ite d the b a sic fina nc ia l sta te me nts o f Truma n Sta te Unive rsity (the Unive rsity) fo r the ye a r e nd e d June 30,

2018. Our a ud it wa s p e rfo rme d in a c c o rd a nc e with a ud iting sta nd a rd s g e ne ra lly a c c e p te d in the Unite d Sta te s o f

Ame ric a a nd G o ve rnme nt Aud iting Sta nd a rd s issue d b y the Co mp tro lle r Ge ne ra l o f the Unite d Sta te s. Tho se sta nd a rd s

re q uire tha t we p la n a nd p e rfo rm the a ud it to o b ta in re a so na b le a ssura nc e a b o ut whe the r the fina nc ia l sta te me nts a re

fre e fro m ma te ria l missta te me nt a nd p re se nte d in a c c o rd a nc e with a c c o unting p rinc ip le s g e ne ra lly a c c e p te d in the

Unite d Sta te s o f Ame ric a . Our a ud it invo lve d pe rfo rming p ro c e d ure s to o b ta in a ud it e vid e nc e a b o ut the a mo unts a nd

d isc lo sure s in the fina nc ia l sta te me nts. We a lso e va lua te d the a p p ro p ria te ne ss o f a c c o unting p o lic ie s use d b y the

Unive rsity a nd the re a so na b le ne ss o f sig nific a nt a c c o unting e stima te s ma d e b y the Unive rsity's ma na g e me nt, a s we ll a s

e va lua te d the o ve ra ll p re se nta tio n o f the fina nc ia l sta te me nts.

Aud iting sta nd a rd s re q uire the a ud ito r to e nsure tha t tho se c ha rg e d with c o rp o ra te g o ve rna nc e re c e ive a d d itio na l

info rma tio n re g a rd ing the sc o p e a nd re sults o f the a ud it tha t ma y a ssist the g o ve rning b o d y in o ve rse e ing the fina nc ia l

re p o rting a nd d isc lo sure p ro c e ss fo r whic h ma na g e me nt is re sp o nsib le . The fo llo wing se c tio n d e sc rib e s ma tte rs whic h a re

re q uire d to b e re p o rte d to yo u.

This info rma tio n is inte nd e d so le ly fo r the use o f the Bo a rd o f G o ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e a nd ma na g e me nt o f the

Unive rsity a nd is no t inte nd e d to b e a nd sho uld no t b e use d b y a nyo ne o the r tha n the se sp e c ifie d p a rtie s.

*_____________________
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Aud ito r Co mmunic a tio ns

AREA COMMENTS

Auditors’ Re sponsibility Unde r U.S. Ge ne ra lly Ac c e pte d Auditing  

Standards, Gove rnme nt Auditing  Standards and the  Uniform 

Guidanc e

Our re sp o nsib ility, a s d e sc rib e d  b y p ro fe ssio na l sta nd a rd s, is to  
e xp re ss a n o p inio n a b o ut whe the r the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts 
p re p a re d  b y ma na g e me nt with o ur a ssista nc e  a re  fa irly 
p re se nte d , in a ll ma te ria l re sp e c ts, in c o nfo rmity with U.S. 
g e ne ra lly a c c e p te d  a c c o unting  p rinc ip le s a nd  tha t the  
Unive rsity c o mp lie d  in a ll ma te ria l re sp e c ts with the  a p p lic a b le  
c o mp lia nc e  re q uire me nts o f its ma jo r fe d e ra l p ro g ra ms. Our 
a ud it o f the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts a nd  c o mp lia nc e  d o e s no t 
re lie ve  yo u o r ma na g e me nt o f re sp o nsib ility fo r the  a c c ura c y o f 
the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts o r c o mp lia nc e  with a p p lic a b le  
c o mp lia nc e  re q uire me nts.

Pro fe ssio na l sta nd a rd s a lso  re q uire  tha t we  o b ta in a  sig nific a nt 
und e rsta nd ing  o f the  Unive rsity's inte rna l c o ntro l to  p la n the  
a ud it.  Ho we ve r suc h und e rsta nd ing  is re q uire d  fo r the  p urp o se  
o f d e te rmining  o ur a ud it p ro c e d ure s a nd  no t to  p ro vid e  a ny 
a ssura nc e  c o nc e rning  suc h inte rna l c o ntro l.  Ac c o rd ing ly, we  
e xp re ss no  suc h a ssura nc e .

We  will issue  the  fo llo wing :

 An unmo d ifie d  o p inio n o n the  Unive rsity’ s fina nc ia l 

sta te me nts fo r the  ye a r e nd e d  June  30, 2018.

 A re p o rt o n c o mp lia nc e  a nd  o n inte rna l c o ntro l o ve r 

fina nc ia l re p o rting  b a se d  o n a n a ud it o f the  fina nc ia l 

sta te me nts in a c c o rd a nc e  with G o ve rnme nt Aud iting  

Sta nd a rd s.  

It is a ntic ip a te d  the  fo llo wing  sing le  a ud it re p o rt will b e  issue d :

 An unmo d ifie d  o p inio n o n c o mp lia nc e  a nd  o ur re p o rt o n 

inte rna l c o ntro ls o ve r fe d e ra l fina nc ia l a ssista nc e  in 

a c c o rd a nc e  with the  Unifo rm G uid a nc e .
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Aud ito r Co mmunic a tio ns (Co ntinue d)

AREA COMMENTS

Othe r Information In Doc ume nts Conta ining  Audite d Financ ia l 

State me nts

 The  2018 a ud ite d  fina nc ia l sta te me nts o f the  Unive rsity will 

b e  inc lud e d  in the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts o f the  Sta te  o f 

Misso uri.  

 To  o ur kno wle d g e , the  2018 a ud ite d  fina nc ia l sta te me nts 

a re  no t inc lud e d  within a ny o the r d o c ume nt. 

 Ma na g e me nt's d isc ussio n a nd  a na lysis:

 We  a p p lie d  c e rta in limite d  p ro c e d ure s in a c c o rd a nc e  

with a ud iting  sta nd a rd s g e ne ra lly a c c e p te d  in the  

Unite d  Sta te s o f Ame ric a .

 We  d o  no t e xp re ss a n o p inio n o r p ro vid e  a ny 

a ssura nc e  o n the  info rma tio n b e c a use  the  limite d  

p ro c e d ure s d o  no t p ro vid e  us with suffic ie nt e vid e nc e  

to  d o  so .

Planne d Sc ope  And Timing  Of The  Audit We  pe rfo rme d the  a udit a c c o rd ing  to  the  p la nne d  sc o pe  a nd  
timing  pre vio usly c o mmunic a te d  to  ma na g e me nt a nd  the  
Audit Co mmitte e  in o ur e ng a g e me nt le tte r da te d  Ma rc h 5, 2018 
a nd  o n June  11, 2018, in o ur me e ting  re g a rding  the  na ture , 
timing  a nd  e xte nt o f o ur a udit pro c e dure s.



Truma n Sta te  Unive rsity

3

Fo r Bo a rd  Of Go ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e  And  

Ma na g e me nt Use  Only

Aud ito r Co mmunic a tio ns (Co ntinue d)

AREA COMMENTS

Qualitative Aspe c ts Of Ac c ounting Prac tic e s

Ma na g e me nt is re sp o nsib le  fo r the  se le c tio n a nd  use  o f 

a p p ro p ria te  a c c o unting  p o lic ie s.  In a c c o rd a nc e  with the  

te rms o f o ur e ng a g e me nt le tte r, we  will a d vise  

ma na g e me nt a b o ut a p p ro p ria te ne ss o f a c c o unting  

p o lic ie s a nd  the ir a p p lic a tio n.

 Sig nific a nt a c c o unting  p o lic ie s a re  d e sc rib e d  in No te  1 to  the  

fina nc ia l sta te me nts.

 No  ne w a c c o unting  p o lic ie s tha t ha d  a  ma te ria l o r sig nific a nt 

imp a c t o n the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts we re  a d o p te d  a nd  the  

a p p lic a tio n o f e xisting  p o lic ie s wa s no t c ha ng e d .

 We  no te d  no  tra nsa c tio ns e nte re d  into  d uring  the  ye a r fo r 

whic h the re  wa s a  la c k o f a utho rita tive  g uid a nc e  o r c o nse nsus. 

 No  sig nific a nt tra nsa c tio ns ha ve  b e e n re c o g nize d  in a  d iffe re nt 

p e rio d  tha n whe n the  tra nsa c tio ns o c c urre d . 



Truma n Sta te  Unive rsity

4

Fo r Bo a rd  Of Go ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e  And  

Ma na g e me nt Use  Only

Aud ito r Co mmunic a tio ns (Co ntinue d)

AREA COMMENTS

Manage me nt Judgme nts And Ac c ounting  Estimate s

The  p re p a ra tio n o f the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts re q uire s the  use  o f 

a c c o unting  e stima te s.  Ce rta in e stima te s a re  p a rtic ula rly 

se nsitive  d ue  to  the ir sig nific a nc e  to  the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts 

a nd  the  p o ssib ility tha t future  e ve nts ma y d iffe r sig nific a ntly 

fro m ma na g e me nt’ s e xp e c ta tio ns.

The  mo st no ta b le  e stima te s a ffe c ting  the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts 

a re :

 De p re c ia b le  live s use d  to  c a lc ula te  d e p re c ia tio n o f 

b uild ing s a nd  e q uip me nt: Ma na g e me nt’ s e stima te  o f 

d e p re c ia b le  live s is b a se d  o n the  a sse ts’  e stima te d  use ful 

live s.

 Allo wa nc e  fo r unc o lle c tib le  lo a ns a nd  stud e nt a c c o unts 

re c e iva b le : Ma na g e me nt ha s d e rive d  a n e stima te d  a mo unt 

o f lo a ns a nd  stud e nt a c c o unts re c e iva b le  tha t will no t b e  

c o lle c te d  in the  future , utilizing  a  histo ric a l c o lle c tio n 

p e rc e nta g e .

 Ac c rue d  p o st-e mp lo yme nt b e ne fits: Ma na g e me nt 

e stima te s the  future  lia b ility fo r p o st-e mp lo yme nt b e ne fits 

b a se d  up o n a  p ro je c tio n o f future  he a lth insura nc e  c o sts fo r 

e lig ib le  re tire e s p a rtic ip a ting  in the  p ro g ra m, d isc o unte d  to  

p re se nt va lue .

 Se lf-insura nc e  a c c rua l: Ma na g e me nt e stima te s the  future  

lia b ility fo r inc urre d  b ut no t re p o rte d  insura nc e  c la ims.

 Ne t p e nsio n lia b ility: Estima te d  b a se d  o n a c tua ria l 

info rma tio n p ro vid e d  b y MOSERS

We  e va lua te d  the  ke y fa c to rs a nd  a ssump tio ns use d  to  d e ve lo p  

the se  e stima te s in d e te rmining  tha t the y a re  re a so na b le  in 

re la tio n to  the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts ta ke n a s a  who le . 
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Aud ito r Co mmunic a tio ns (Co ntinue d)

AREA COMMENTS

Financ ia l State me nt Disc losure s

The  d isc lo sure s a re  ne utra l, c o nsiste nt a nd  c le a r.  Ce rta in 

d isc lo sure s a re  p a rtic ula rly se nsitive  b e c a use  o f the ir 

sig nific a nc e  to  the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts’  use rs.

The  mo st se nsitive  d isc lo sure s a ffe c ting  the  fina nc ia l sta te me nts 

a re :

 De p o sits a nd  inve stme nts 

 Lo ng -te rm lia b ilitie s

 Pe nsio n p la n - MOSERS

Diffic ultie s Enc ounte re d In Pe rforming  The  Audit The re  we re  no  d iffic ultie s e nc o unte re d  in d e a ling  with 

ma na g e me nt re la te d  to  the  p e rfo rma nc e  o f the  a ud it.

Corre c te d And Unc orre c te d Misstate me nts We  a c c umula te d  se ve ra l re c la ssific a tio n e ntrie s, whic h d id  no t 

ha ve  a n imp a c t o n the  c ha ng e  in ne t a sse ts.  Ma na g e me nt 

a g re e d  with us a nd  re c o rd e d  the se  e ntrie s.  

During  o ur a ud it p ro c e d ure s, we  d id  no t a c c umula te  a ny 

c o rre c te d  o r unc o rre c te d  missta te me nts tha t imp a c te d  the  

Unive rsity’ s c ha ng e  in ne t p o sitio n in the  c urre nt o r p rio r p e rio d s. 
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AREA COMMENTS

Disagre e me nts With Manage me nt We  a re  p le a se d  to  re p o rt tha t the re  we re  no  suc h 

d isa g re e me nts tha t we re  e nc o unte re d  d uring  the  a ud it.  

Manage me nt Re pre se ntations We  will re q ue st c e rta in re p re se nta tio ns fro m ma na g e me nt tha t 

a re  inc lud e d  in a  ma na g e me nt re p re se nta tio n le tte r.  Se e  

a tta c he d .

Manage me nt Consultations With Othe r Inde pe nde nt 

Ac c ountants

No ne

Othe r Audit Findings Or Issue s The re  we re  no  ma tte rs o f sig nific a nt d isc ussio n tha t a ffe c te d  

o ur re te ntio n a s the  Unive rsity’ s a ud ito rs.
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Ob se rva tio ns And  Disc ussio n Ite ms

 Pe rkins Lo a n Pro g ra m

 No lo a ns to ne w b o rro we rs e ffe c tive Oc to b e r 1, 2017

 $4.4M o f c o ntrib utio ns b y the Fe d e ra l G o ve rnme nt to the Unive rsity (sinc e inc e p tio n o f the

p ro g ra m) will b e re turne d a nd re c o g nize d a s a n e xp e nse in the future , unle ss c urre nt g uid a nc e

fro m the De p a rtme nt o f Ed uc a tio n is re vise d .

 Mo o d y’ s 2018 Outlo o k o n the Hig he r Ed uc a tio n Se c to r (as a whole ) d o wng ra d e d fro m “ Sta b le ” to

“Ne g a tive ”

 Re ve nue g ro wth will b e o utp a c e d b y e xp e nse g ro wth, d ue to p o te ntia lly rising la b o r c o sts a nd the

ne e d to susta in c o mp e titive inve stme nts in p ro g ra ms, fa c ilitie s a nd te c hno lo g y will ke e p e xp e nse

g ro wth a b o ve g e ne ra l infla tio na ry le ve ls

 Unc e rta inty o f fe d e ra l g o ve rnme nt fund ing

 Financ ia l re se rve s are providing some stabilization to the outlook

 A sta b le o utlo o k wo uld b e sup p o rte d b y a g g re g a te o p e ra ting re ve nue g ro wth o f a t le a st 3% a nd

a b o ve e xp e nse g ro wth, c o up le d with o ng o ing so lid stud e nt d e ma nd a nd stro ng c a sh a nd

inve stme nt le ve ls
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Fina nc ia l Ana lysis

OBSERVATIONS

 Inve stme nts inc re a se d b y a p p ro xima te ly $8.8M c o mp a re d to the p rio r ye a r. Inve stme nts g e ne ra te d a ne t re turn o f

$3.5M d uring the c urre nt ye a r, a nd ne w e nd o we d g ifts fro m d o no rs a mo unte d to a p p ro xima te ly $1.5M.

 Ca pita l a sse ts d e c re a se d b y $6.7M c o mp a re d to the p rio r ye a r. Sc he d ule d d e p re c ia tio n e xp e nse o n Unive rsity fixe d

a sse ts a nd the d e mo litio n o f Fa ir Ap a rtme nts e xc e e d e d the c o sts o f a d d itio ns ma d e d uring FY18, whic h inc lud e d the

Misso uri Ha ll d ining ro o m, Pic kle r Lib ra ry fire sup p re ssio n syste m, a nd misc e lla ne o us e q uipme nt.

 De fe rre d o utflo ws o f re so urc e s inc re a se d b y $1.5M, a s a re sult o f a shift in a c tua ria l a ssump tio ns a nd d iffe re nc e s

b e twe e n the o rig ina lly fo re c a ste d MOSERS p e nsio n p la n “ e xp e rie nc e ” a nd the a c tua l re sults. This a mo unt will b e

a mo rtize d to fring e b e ne fit e xp e nse o ve r the c o urse o f the ne xt 4 fisc a l ye a rs b y the Unive rsity.

June 30,
2018 2017

Assets
   Cash  2,152$            5,165$            

Student accounts receivable 1,096                    1,080                    
Investments 129,266                120,425                
Loans to students, net 4,841                    4,785                    
Capital assets 207,388                214,114                

   Other assets 2,425                    2,828                    

Total Assets 347,168$        348,397$        

Deferred Outflows Of Resources 30,131$          28,633$          
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OBSERVATIONS

 Lo ng -te rm d e b t d e c re a se d b y $2.8M d ue to sc he d ule d p a yme nts o n o utsta nd ing b o nd s a nd the e ne rg y le a se

p ro je c t.

 The ne t p e nsio n lia b ility inc re a se d b y a p p ro xima te ly $9.5M o ve r the p rio r ye a r. This inc re a se is a re sult o f the MOSERS

a c tua ria l c a lc ula tio n o f the Unive rsity sha re o f the unfund e d lia b ility o f the p la n. G ive n the c o mp le xitie s o f this

c a lc ula tio n, this a c tua ria l va lua tio n will a lwa ys o c c ur o ne fisc a l ye a r b e hind the c urre nt p e rio d (thus, p la n is va lue d a s

o f 6/ 30/ 17 a t the e nd o f the c urre nt ye a r). Re sults a re p rima rily d ue to c ha ng e s in the ra tio o f e mp lo ye r c o ntrib utio ns,

the re turn o n p la n a sse ts, a nd the a c tua ria l d iffe re nc e s. The e xp e c te d re turn o n p la n a sse ts wa s re d uc e d fro m 7.65%

to 7.5% d uring the c urre nt ye a r. The c o mp o ne nt o f this c ha ng e in the p e nsio n lia b ility tha t re la te s to a c tua l c a sh p a id

b y the Unive rsity is d e sc rib e d o n p a g e 11 in this d o c ume nt.

June 30,
2018 2017

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued 9,416$            8,955$            

Other employee related obligations 1,703                    2,078                    
Unearned revenue 2,369                    2,845                    
Long-term debt 54,239                  57,084                  
Net pension liability 87,257                  77,726                  

Other liabilities 876                       812                       

Total Liabilities 155,860$        149,500$        

Deferred Inflows Of Resources 2,361$            1,953$            
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OBSERVATIONS

 Tuitio n a nd fe e s d e c re a se d b y $874K c o mp a re d to the p rio r ye a r. A mo d e ra te inc re a se in g ra d ua te stud e nts fo r the

fa ll se me ste r wa s o ffse t b y a mo d e ra te d e c line in und e rg ra d ua te stud e nts fo r the ye a r. The d isc o unt fo r institutio na l

a id re ma ine d re la tive ly c o nsiste nt b e twe e n ye a rs, a nd no c ha ng e s we re no te d to the p ric ing o f tuitio n a nd re la te d

fe e s.

 Inve stme nt inc o me d e c re a se d b y $1.3M o ve r the p rio r ye a r. The inte re st inc o me e a rne d b y the Unive rsity c o up le d

with the ne t e nd o wme nt re turns fro m the Fo und a tio n we re p a rtia lly o ffse t b y a ne t unre a lize d lo ss o n the Unive rsity’ s

fixe d -inc o me p o rtfo lio .

 Re ve nue s d e sig na te d fo r e nd o wme nt a nd c a p ita l e xp e nd iture s d e c re a se d b y $11.1M c o mp a re d to the p rio r ye a r.

The ma jo rity o f this d e c re a se is a ttrib uta b le to a d d itio na l fund ing fro m the Sta te fo r the re no va tio n o f Ba ld win Ha ll, a s

we ll a s fund ing fro m the Unive rsity’ s fo o d -se rvic e c o ntra c to r fo r re no va tio ns to the Stud e nt Unio n Ma in Stre e t Ma rke t,

tha t wa s re c e ive d in FY17.

June 30,
2018 2017

Revenues
Tuition and fees, net 26,127$       27,001$       
Grants, contracts and contributions 9,767                    8,678                    
Auxiliary enterprises 23,752                  25,668                  
Investment income 3,543                    4,885                    
Revenues designated for endowment and capital expenditures 3,402                    14,471                  
State appropriation 39,441                  40,226                  
Other revenues 3,073                    3,071                    

Total Revenues 109,105$     124,000$     
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Fina nc ia l Ana lysis (Co ntinue d)

OBSERVATIONS

 Be ne fits e xpe nse s inc re a se d b y $2.1M c o mp a re d to the p rio r ye a r. Inc lud e d in the b e ne fits e xpe nse s o f $26.1M in the

c urre nt ye a r is the to ta l MOSERS p e nsio n e xp e nse o f $14.3M, whic h re p re se nts a $3.1M inc re a se o ve r the p rio r ye a r.

Ca sh c o ntrib utio ns to the MOSERS p la n d uring the p la n me a sure me nt ye a r a mo unte d to $6.0M; thus, a p p ro xima te ly

$8.3M o f this e xp e nse is “no n-c a sh” .

Ad d itio na lly, he a lth insura nc e c la im c o sts ro se b y a p p ro xima te ly $206Kin the c urre nt ye a r.

 The c ha ng e in ne t p o sitio n re p re se nts the to ta l e xpe nse s in e xc e ss o f re ve nue s fo r the c urre nt ye a r. The fo llo wing

no nre c urring a nd sig nific a nt no n-c a sh ite ms sho uld b e c o nsid e re d whe n a na lyzing this a mo unt:

 No n-c a sh c o mp o ne nt o f Pe nsio n e xp e nse : $ 8.3M

June 30,
2018 2017

Total Revenues (from previous page) 109,105$     124,000$     

Expenses
Salaries and Wages 44,853            46,138            
Benefits 26,106                  24,018                  
Supplies and other services 17,334                  17,587                  
Depreciation 13,719                  12,249                  
Other 13,590                  14,977                  

Total Expenses 115,602                114,969                

Change In Net Position (6,497)$        9,031$         
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Fina nc ia l Ana lysis (Co ntinue d)

OBSERVATIONS

 Ne t p o sitio n inve ste d in c a p ita l a sse ts d e c re a se d b y $5M, a s a re sult o f d e p re c ia tio n e xp e nse fo r the ye a r in e xc e ss o f

the re no va tio ns a nd a d d itio ns to c a p ita l a sse ts in the c urre nt ye a r, c o up le d with the re p a yme nt o f lo ng -te rm d e b t.

 Exp e nd a b le ne t p o sitio n inc re a se d b y $4.2M, p rima rily d ue to a p p re c ia tio n o n the Fo und a tio n’ s e nd o wme nt a sse ts.

 Unre stric te d ne t p o sitio n d e c re a se d b y a p p ro xima te ly $7.3M, mo stly d ue to the MOSERS p e nsio n e xp e nse re c o g nize d

in the c urre nt ye a r.

June 30,
2018 2017

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets 152,349$        157,369$        
Nonexpendable 33,102                  31,543                  
Expendable 25,670                  21,514                  
Board Designated for Scholarships 1,593                    1,518                    
Unrestricted 6,364                    13,631                  

Total Net Position 219,078$        225,575$        
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Be nfo rd’ s Law was e stab lishe d by Frank Be nfo rd in the  1930s and is use d by fo re nsic  ac c o untants and audito rs as an 

indic ato r o f po te ntial ac c o unting  and e xpe nse  fraud. The  law e xpe c ts 30.1% o f numbe rs in a  list o f financ ial transac tio ns 

to  be g in with “1.” Eac h suc c e ssive  dig it sho uld re pre se nt a  pro g re ssive ly smalle r pro po rtio n. 

Whe n dig its stray fro m the  patte rn, fraud may be  to  b lame . As vo lume s o f data  c o ntinue  to  g ro w, it has be c o me  a 

valuab le  to o l in analyzing  data se ts fo r po te ntial irre g ular ac tivity.  RubinBrown utilize d this me thod to  re vie w Truman State  

Unive rsity ’s e xpe nse  c ate gorie s for 2018 as a part o f our planne d audit approac h.  

Be nfo rd ’ s La w

As Use d  In Aud it Me tho d o lo g y
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 We inve stig a te d two -d ig it d e via tio ns fo r ite ms tha t o c c urre d sig nific a ntly o utsid e o f the e xp e c te d p ro p o rtio n

 Pa yme nts se le c te d re la te to Upwa rd Bo und p e r d ie m, stud e nt re fund s, ho using d e p o sit re turns, mo ving e xp e nse s,

o ffic ia ting fe e s, va rio us me mb e rship s, lic e nse re ne wa ls, p a yme nts fo r b ulk ma iling , e tc .

 The na ture o f d isb urse me nts a re simila r to tho se o f the p rio r ye a r.

 No unusual ac tivity was note d.

0

0.01

0.02

0.03

0.04

0.05

0.06

0.07

0.08

10 13 16 19 22 25 28 31 34 37 40 43 46 49 52 55 58 61 64 67 70 73 76 79 82 85 88 91 94 97

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n

Dig it

6,436 Disburse me nts Tota ling  $46,059,392 Through April 2018

Pro p o rtio n

Be nfo rd  Pro p o rtio n



Truma n Sta te  Unive rsity

15

Fo r Bo a rd  Of Go ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e  And  

Ma na g e me nt Use  Only

Ind e p e nd e nt Aud ito rs’  Re p o rt On Ad d itio na l 

Info rma tio n

Bo a rd o f Go ve rno rs, Aud it Co mmitte e a nd Ma na g e me nt

Truma n Sta te Unive rsity

Kirksville , Misso uri

Our re p o rt o n o ur a ud it o f the b a sic fina nc ia l sta te me nts o f Truma n Sta te Unive rsity (the Unive rsity) fo r June 30, 2018

a p p e a rs in the fina nc ia l sta te me nts o f the Unive rsity. Tha t a ud it wa s c o nd uc te d fo r the p urp o se o f fo rming a n o p inio n o n

the b a sic fina nc ia l sta te me nts ta ke n a s a who le . The a d d itio na l info rma tio n c o nta ine d he re in is p re se nte d fo r p urp o se s

o f a d d itio na l a na lysis a nd is no t a re q uire d p a rt o f the b a sic fina nc ia l sta te me nts. Suc h info rma tio n ha s no t b e e n

sub je c te d to the a ud iting p ro c e d ure s a p p lie d in the a ud it o f the b a sic fina nc ia l sta te me nts a nd , a c c o rd ing ly, we e xp re ss

no o p inio n o n it.

*________________
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Board of Governors and Audit Committee 
Truman State University 
Kirksville, Missouri 
 
 
Report On The Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of 
Truman State University (the University), a component unit of the State of Missouri, as of and 
for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility For The Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinions. 
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Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Truman State University as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and its 
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

Other Matters 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 and the Pension Plan 
Information on pages 47 and 48 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
_______*, on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 
and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 

______* 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

This section of the Truman State University (the University) annual financial report 

presents management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and 

performance of the University during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 

2016.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial 

statements and footnotes.  The financial statements, footnotes and this discussion are 

the responsibility of University management. 

 

Using The Annual Financial Statement 

 

This annual report consists of financial statements, prepared in accordance with 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 35, Basic Financial 

Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 

Universities.  The financial statements prescribed by GASB Statement No. 35 (the 

statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 

and the statement of cash flows) are prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, 

whereby revenues, and assets are recognized when the service is provided and expense 

and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of when cash 

is exchanged. 

 

About The University 

 

The University was established in 1867 and is governed by a ten-member Board of 

Governors.  The University is Missouri’s only public highly selective institution.  It was 

designated as the statewide liberal arts and sciences institution in 1986 and offers 

undergraduate and graduate degree programs, minors, and several additional areas of 

specialization within academic departments. 

 

In the Fall of 2018, the University enrolled 5,853 students.  The primary mission of the 

institution is undergraduate education, and the enrollment data reflects this mission. 

 
 2018 2017 2016 

    

Undergraduate 5,504 5,898 6,039 

Graduate 349 374 340 

    

 5,853 6,272 6,379 

 

Most students enrolled at the University are full-time, degree-seeking undergraduates 

who live in residence halls or in the Kirksville community. 
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The University has a diverse student body with the majority from Missouri.  The 

remaining students come from 41 states (including Missouri) and 48 foreign countries.  

Approximately 6.7% of the students are international students, and the enrollment also 

includes 13% from minorities including African-American, Hispanic, American Indian, 

and Asian American. 

 

Key ratios include the following: 

 
Student/Faculty Ratio 16:1 

Graduate and Professional School  

Placement Rate 36.24% 

 

These indicators help demonstrate that the University is focusing resources on 

activities which enhance student learning. 

 

Statements Of Net Position 

The statement of net position includes all assets and liabilities of Truman State 

University and Truman State University Foundation (the Foundation).  The difference 

between total assets and total liabilities, or net position, is one indicator of the current 

financial condition of the University, while the change in net position is an indicator of 

whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened during the year when 

considered with nonfinancial facts such as enrollment levels and condition of the 

facilities. 

 

Nonexpendable restricted net position is subject to externally imposed stipulations that 

may be maintained permanently by the University.  Expendable restricted net position 

is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the 

University pursuant to the stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.  The 

category of unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.  

They may be designated by specific purposes by action of management or the Board of 

Governors, or may be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. 
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Condensed Statements Of Net Position 
As Of June 30, 2018, 2017 And 2016 

 
2018 2017 2016

Assets

Current Assets 18,549,748$       26,145,255$      38,289,527$      

Noncurrent Assets 328,618,442       322,251,641      297,485,714      

Total Assets 347,168,190       348,396,896      335,775,241      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 30,131,063         28,632,391        11,352,074        

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 16,374,889         16,564,099        15,406,925        

Noncurrent Liabilities 139,484,969       132,936,427      113,733,139      

Total Liabilities 155,859,858       149,500,526      129,140,064      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,360,811           1,953,272          1,443,444          

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 152,348,570       157,369,407      147,627,000      

Restricted, nonexpendable 33,101,832         31,542,662        29,744,749        

Restricted, expendable 25,670,823         21,513,957        18,502,231        

Unrestricted 7,957,359           15,149,463        20,669,827        

Total Net Position 219,078,584$     225,575,489$    216,543,807$    
 

 

At June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the University’s current assets of $18.5 million, $26.1 
million and $38.3 million, respectively, were sufficient to cover current liabilities of 
$16.4 million, $16.6 million and $15.4 million, respectively.  Noncurrent assets include 
capital assets of $207.4 million at June 30, 2018, $214.1 million at June 30, 2017 and 
$206.6 million at June 30, 2016.  See Note 4 for a recap of the capital asset activity. 
 
University liabilities total $155.9 million, $149.5 million and $129.1 million at June 30, 
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, with noncurrent liabilities of $139.5 million, $132.9 
million and $113.7 million, respectively.  A significant portion of noncurrent liabilities 
relates to the University’s respective share of the underfunded status of the MOSERS 
pension plan (Note 6).  Revenue bonds payable is the largest other component of 
noncurrent liabilities.  See Note 5 for a recap of the long-term debt activity. 
 
Net position decreased by $6.5 million from 2018 compared to 2017, mostly due to a 
decrease in state capital appropriations and an increase in MOSERS pension plan 
expense (Note 6).  Net position increased by $9.0 million from 2017 compared to 2016. 
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Condensed Statements Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Net Position 
For The Years Ended June 30, 2018, 2017 And 2016 

 
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the revenues 
earned and expenses incurred during the year.  Activities are reported as either 
operating or nonoperating.  A public university’s dependency on state aid and gifts 
could result in operating deficits because the financial reporting model classifies state 
appropriations and gifts as nonoperating revenues.  The utilization of capital assets is 
reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the cost of an 
asset over its expected useful life. 

2018 2017 2016

Total Operating Revenues 55,041,414$      55,829,916$      57,109,619$       

Total Operating Expenses 113,876,039         112,322,747         103,765,385          

Operating Loss (58,834,625)          (56,492,831)          (46,655,766)           

Net Nonoperating Revenues 48,935,495        51,053,141        48,204,364         

Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains

and losses (9,899,130)         (5,439,690)         1,548,598           

Appropriations, gifts and revenues restricted for capital 

improvements 1,864,362             12,689,942           1,519,951              

Additions to permanent endowments 1,537,863             1,781,430             2,115,757              

Total Increase (Decrease) In Net Position (6,496,905)$       9,031,682$        5,184,306$         

Operating Revenues

Tuition and fees, net 26,127,489$      27,001,481$      26,681,850$       

Federal, state grants and private contracts and

grants 2,580,031             2,577,721             2,517,772              

Auxiliary enterprises, net 23,752,057           23,783,224           25,550,818            

Sales and services of educational activities

and other 2,581,837             2,467,490             2,359,179              

55,041,414$      55,829,916$      57,109,619$       

Nonoperating Revenues

State appropriations 39,440,512$      40,226,391$      41,816,820$       

Investment income 3,666,329             5,005,775             1,968,314              

Grants, contributions and other 7,554,598             7,526,564             6,317,404              

50,661,439$      52,758,730$      50,102,538$       

Nonoperating Expenses

Change in value of annuity and trust obligations 69,979$             (2,061)$              65,994$              

Interest on capital asset related debt 1,655,965             1,707,650             1,832,180              

1,725,944$        1,705,589$        1,898,174$         
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2018 2017 2016

Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 44,853,254$      46,137,662$      45,303,736$       

Fringe benefits 26,105,884           24,018,568           16,146,473            

Supplies and other services 17,333,904           17,586,784           17,469,559            

Scholarship and fellowships 672,754                663,936                747,035                 

Depreciation 13,719,197           12,248,732           11,692,939            

Utilities 3,950,439             4,066,030             3,875,469              

Other 7,240,607             7,601,035             8,530,174              

113,876,039$    112,322,747$    103,765,385$     
 

 

Comparisons 2018 To 2017 
 
The most significant sources of revenue for the University were state appropriations at 
$39.4 million in 2018 compared to $40.2 million in 2017; student tuition and fees 
totaling $26.1 million in 2018 compared to $27.0 million in 2017; and auxiliary services 
totaling $23.7 million in 2018 compared to $23.8 million in 2017. 
 
Operating expenses totaled $113.9 million in 2018 compared to $112.3 million in 2017 
with salaries and wages down 2.8%, fringe benefits up 8.7%, supplies and other services 
down 1.4%, scholarships up 1.3%, depreciation up 12%, utilities down 2.8%, and other 
expenses down 4.8%. 
 
Comparisons 2017 To 2016 
 
The most significant sources of revenue for the University were state appropriations at 
$40.2 million in 2017 compared to $41.8 million in 2016; student tuition and fees 
totaling $27.0 million in 2017 compared to $26.7 million in 2016; and auxiliary services 
totaling $23.8 million in 2017 compared to $25.6 million in 2016. 
 
Operating expenses totaled $112.3 million in 2017 compared to $103.8 million in 2016 
with salaries and wages up 1.8%, fringe benefits up 48.8%, supplies and other services 
up 0.7%, scholarships down 11.1%, depreciation up 4.8%, utilities up 4.9%, and other 
expenses down 10.9%. 
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Condensed Statements Of Cash Flows 
For The Years Ended June 30, 2018, 2017 And 2016 

 
The statement of cash flows presents the University’s flows of cash by defined 
categories.  The primary purpose of the statement of cash flows is to provide 
information about the University’s cash receipts and payments during the year. 
 

2018 2017 2016

Cash And Cash Equivalents Provided By (Used In):

Operating activities (37,734,841)$    (38,389,986)$    (36,170,247)$    

Noncapital financing activities 47,445,444       48,577,180       50,160,277       

Capital and related financing activities (8,567,718)        (11,298,405)      (18,721,741)      

Investing activities (3,136,926)        958,777            (7,180,715)        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,994,041)        (152,434)           (11,912,426)      

Cash And Cash Equivalents, Beginning Of Year 8,073,302         8,225,736         20,138,162       

Cash And Cash Equivalents, End Of Year 6,079,261$       8,073,302$       8,225,736$       
 

 

The major source of operating cash was student tuition and fees ($25.8 million, $27.0 

million and $26.9 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively) and auxiliary 

enterprises ($23.7 million, $25.7 million and $25.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, 

respectively).  The largest use of operating cash was payments to employees ($62.9 

million, $64.8 million and $62.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively) and 

payments to suppliers ($17.7 million, $17.3 million and $17.5 million in 2018, 2017 and 

2016, respectively). 

 

The most significant source of noncapital financing activities was state appropriations 

of $39.4 million, $40.2 million and $41.8 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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 2017 Percent 

Instruction   
Credit and noncredit courses. $55,269,391 48.81% 

   
Research   

Activities specifically organized to produce research outcomes from 
funds awarded by external agencies, as well as internally supported 
programs. 788,666 0.70 

   
Public Service   

Activities that primarily provide noninstructional services to 
individuals and groups outside of the University.  Expenditures are 
primarily for community service. 2,115,624 1.87 

   
Academic Support   

Supporting services to instruction, research and public service.  
Includes libraries, academic administration and instructional media. 7,252,515 6.40 

   
Student Services   

Activities which primarily contribute to student's well-being outside 
the formal instruction program.  Includes admissions and registrar, 
student activities, and financial aid administration. 12,124,171 10.71 

   
Institutional Support   

Activities which generally provide support to the entire University.  
Includes executive management, fiscal operations, personnel, 
development, fundraising activities and general administrative 
services. 7,879,359 6.96 

   
Scholarships And Fellowships   

Awards for grant-in-aid stipends to students based on financial need 
and/or merit. 663,936 0.59 

   
Auxiliary Enterprises   

Expenditures of essentially self-supporting activities such as 
Student Union Building, housing, cafeterias and recreation center. 27,135,682 23.96 

   

Total Operating Expenses $113,229,344 100.00% 
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 2016 Percent 

Instruction   
Credit and noncredit courses. $ 52,866,717 50.95% 

   
Research   

Activities specifically organized to produce research outcomes from 
funds awarded by external agencies, as well as internally supported 
programs. 939,167 0.90 

   
Public Service   

Activities that primarily provide noninstructional services to 
individuals and groups outside of the University.  Expenditures are 
primarily for community service. 1,824,509 1.76 

   
Academic Support   

Supporting services to instruction, research and public service.  
Includes libraries, academic administration and instructional media. 7,407,193 7.14 

   
Student Services   

Activities which primarily contribute to student's well-being outside 
the formal instruction program.  Includes admissions and registrar, 
student activities, and financial aid administration. 10,697,346 10.31 

   
Institutional Support   

Activities which generally provide support to the entire University.  
Includes executive management, fiscal operations, personnel, 
development, fundraising activities and general administrative 
services. 6,959,074 6.71 

   
Scholarships and Fellowships   

Awards for grant-in-aid stipends to students based on financial need 
and/or merit. 747,035 0.72 

   
Auxiliary Enterprises   

Expenditures of essentially self-supporting activities such as 
Student Union Building, housing, cafeterias and recreation center. 22,324,342 21.51 

   
Total Operating Expenses $103,765,385 100.00% 

 
Physical Plant  

The University completed a multiyear plan at a cost of nearly $100 million to fully 

renovate its residence halls and the Student Union Building.  For fiscal year 2018, this 

effort included completion of a $1.7 million renovation to the Blanton/Nason/Brewer 

housing complex.  Academic building renovations, and improvements, exceeded $78 

million since 2001.  The aforementioned outlays included a $15 million renovation of 

Baldwin Hall that was completed at the beginning of fiscal year 2018.  The Baldwin 

Hall project was partially funded by a State of Missouri Bond Issue.  Finally, $4.8 

million in improvements were made to Stokes Stadium, including renovations to the 

football field, track and press box. 
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At the conclusion of fiscal year 2018, two major projects began: (1) a $4.4 million 

renovation of the Missouri Hall dining and kitchen areas got underway in May of 2018 

and concluded in August, and (2) $3.1 million in life safety improvements for the Pickler 

Memorial Library began in May of 2018 and are expected to be completed by the end of 

the calendar year. 

 

Future capital projects include the replacement of two aged chilling units that support 

the campus cooling system, a roof replacement for Violette Hall and masonry repairs to 

the Recreation Center. 

 

Looking Forward 

The University’s outlook is closely related to the financial status of the State of 

Missouri.  Traditionally, the largest source of Education and General Revenue has come 

through the state appropriations, and the operating funds from the state for fiscal year 

2018 decreased by 1.95% from 2017.  For fiscal year 2019, the General Assembly 

appropriated level funding for higher education, and this was approved by the 

Governor. 

 

The Missouri Coordinating Board for Higher Education (CBHE) made its 

recommendations for FY 2020 at its September 2018 meeting.  Utilizing three elements 

of the performance funding model, the recommendation provides a 3% overall increase 

for Truman.  Additional funds were also recommended as a block for institutions to 

develop proposals for academic initiatives which meet state economic and workforce 

needs. 

 

The previous limitation on tuition increases beyond the consumer price index (CPI) was 

also modified by the General Assembly.  This became effective in August 2018 and now 

allows tuition increases designed to offset lost revenue when state funding decreases on 

a year to year basis. 

 

In terms of student enrollment, fall 2018 headcount is at 5,853 compared to fall 2017 at 

6,272.  New student enrollment was down as well as enrollment in part-time students.  

The university has engaged an enrollment management consultant with work 

beginning in late September 2018.  It is anticipated that this effort will result in a 

rebound in new student enrollment in fall 2019. 

 

Additional information can be obtained by calling (660) 785-4150 or writing to Truman 

State University, Attn: Business Office, 100 E. Normal, Kirksville, MO 63501. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Page 1 Of 2 

 

 

 
June 30,

2018 2017

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,270,479$      3,979,937$       

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 881,459           1,186,541

Restricted short-term investments 2,783,055        2,498,678         

Short-term investments 8,965,886        13,532,523       

Accounts receivable, net of allowance: $93,000 - 2018,

$142,000 - 2017 1,096,442        1,079,829

Interest receivable 383,936           326,566            

Federal and state grants receivable 356,741           375,778            

Other receivables 251,905           424,878

Inventories 401,412           475,483            

Loans to students, net of allowance: $12,900 - 2018, 

$4,200 - 2017 1,463,262        1,376,408         

Prepaid expenses 695,171           888,634            

Total Current Assets 18,549,748      26,145,255       

Noncurrent Assets

Investments 117,517,100    104,394,117     

Loans to students, net of allowance: $58,200 - 2018, 

$12,300 - 2017 3,378,149        3,409,619

Capital assets, net 207,388,013    214,114,222     

Cash value of life insurance 134,422           125,135            

Other assets, net 200,758           208,548            

Total Noncurrent Assets 328,618,442    322,251,641     

Total Assets 347,168,190    348,396,896     

Deferred Outflows Of Resources

Deferred amounts on University pension contributions 5,973,188        5,593,856         

Deferred amounts on debt refundings 1,367,176        1,445,515         

Differences between expected and actual experience - pension 22,790,699      21,593,020       

Total Deferred Outflows Of Resources 30,131,063      28,632,391       
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Page 2 Of 2 

 
June 30,

2018 2017

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,415,747$       8,955,303$        

Accrued early retiree termination benefits 127,961 334,845

Accrued compensated absences 1,032,288 1,095,209

Unearned revenue 2,368,609 2,845,488

Annuities and trusts payable 88,611 72,857

Long-term debt - current portion 3,076,004 2,994,509

Deposits held in custody for others 265,669 265,888

Total Current Liabilities 16,374,889       16,564,099        

Noncurrent Liabilities

Accrued compensated absences 393,821 395,804

Accrued early retiree termination benefits 148,569 252,330

Annuities and trusts payable 522,907 472,585

Long-term debt 51,162,936 54,089,366

Net pension liability 87,256,736 77,726,342

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 139,484,969     132,936,427      

Total Liabilities 155,859,858     149,500,526      

Deferred Inflows Of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 2,360,811         1,953,272

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 152,348,570     157,369,407      

Restricted for:

Nonexpendable:

Endowment 28,636,004       27,080,098        

Loans (Federal) 4,465,828         4,462,564          

Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships 9,668,925         8,486,383          

Loans (Foundation) 3,543,941         3,374,490          

Other 12,457,957       9,653,084          

Unrestricted 7,957,359         15,149,463        

Total Net Position 219,078,584$   225,575,489$    
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 

For The Years

Ended June 30,

2018 2017

Operating Revenues

Tuition and fees, net 26,127,489$     27,001,481$     

Federal grants and contracts 2,315,750         2,409,805         

State grants and contracts 166,120            83,502              

Private grants and contracts 98,161              84,414              

Interest on student loans receivable 193,807            195,982            

Sales and services of educational activities 682,984            547,130            

Auxiliary enterprises, net 23,752,057       23,783,224       

Other operating revenues 1,705,046         1,724,378         

Total Operating Revenues 55,041,414       55,829,916       

Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 44,853,254       46,137,662       

Fringe benefits 26,105,884       24,018,568       

Supplies and other services 17,333,904       17,586,784       

Scholarships and fellowships 672,754            663,936

Depreciation 13,719,197       12,248,732       

Utilities 3,950,439         4,066,030         

Other 7,240,607         7,601,035

Total Operating Expenses 113,876,039     112,322,747     

Operating Loss (58,834,625)      (56,492,831)      

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

State appropriations 39,440,512       40,226,391       

Federal grants and contracts 5,295,082         4,609,530         

Contributions 1,858,073         1,495,943         

Change in value of annuity and trust obligations (69,979)             2,061                

Income from trusts 123,647            120,602            

Investment income 3,542,682         4,885,173         

Interest on capital asset-related debt (1,655,965)        (1,707,650)        

Gain on disposal of capital assets 342                   4,324                

Other nonoperating revenues 401,101            1,416,767

Nonoperating Revenues, Net 48,935,495       51,053,141       

Loss Before Other Revenues (9,899,130)        (5,439,690)        

Appropriations, Gifts And Revenues Restricted For Capital 

Improvements 1,864,362         12,689,942       

Additions To Permanent Endowments 1,537,863         1,781,430         

Increase (Decrease) In Net Position (6,496,905)        9,031,682         

Net Position - Beginning Of Year 225,575,489     216,543,807     

Net Position - End Of Year 219,078,584$   225,575,489$   
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
 

For The Years 

Ended June 30,

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Tuition and fees 25,808,054$    27,024,951$     

Grants and contracts 2,454,441        2,691,532         

Payments to suppliers (17,659,602)     (17,323,790)      

Payments for utilities (3,950,439)       (4,066,030)        

Payments to employees (62,895,768)     (64,828,057)      

Payments for scholarships and fellowships (672,754)          (663,936)           

Loans issued to students (892,217)          (866,924)           

Collections of loans to students 1,030,640        1,056,113         

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 23,722,408      24,724,327       

Sales and services of educational activities 682,984           547,130            

Other payments (5,362,588)       (6,685,302)        

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (37,734,841)     (38,389,986)      

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

State appropriations 39,440,512      40,226,391       

Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 6,078,816        6,020,984         

Investments subject to annuity and trust obligations 154,687           15,000              

Payments of annuity and trust obligations (158,590)          (70,796)             

Endowment gifts 1,537,863        1,781,430         

Other receipts 392,156           604,171            

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 47,445,444      48,577,180       

Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Activities

Appropriations, gifts and revenues restricted for capital improvements 1,864,362        10,754,379       

Proceeds from sales of capital assets —                     12,504              

Purchase of capital assets (5,764,530)       (17,395,814)      

Interest paid on capital debt and leases (1,661,140)       (1,712,615)        

Principal paid on capital debt and leases (3,006,410)       (2,956,859)        

Net Cash Used In Capital And Related

Financing Activities (8,567,718)       (11,298,405)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 56,160,432      95,501,082       

Investment income 3,640,153        2,689,568         

Distributions from perpetual trusts 123,647           126,211            

Purchases of investments (63,061,158)     (97,358,084)      

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (3,136,926)       958,777            

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (1,994,041)       (152,434)           

Cash And Cash Equivalents - Beginning Of Year 8,073,302        8,225,736         

Cash And Cash Equivalents - End Of Year 6,079,261$      8,073,302$       
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 
 

 
For The Years 

Ended June 30,

2018 2017

Reconciliation Of Cash And Cash Equivalents

To The Statement Of Net Position

Cash 1,270,479$      3,979,937$       

Restricted cash - current 881,459           1,186,541         

Cash equivalents included in short-term investments 3,195,632        2,390,319         

Cash equivalents included in investments - noncurrent 731,691           516,505            

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 6,079,261$      8,073,302$       

Reconciliation Of Operating Loss To

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

Operating loss (58,834,625)$   (56,492,831)$    

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to

net cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 13,719,197      12,248,732       

Net change in pension expense 8,438,919        5,519,955         

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 175,397           (131,576)           

Inventories 74,071             121,121            

Loans receivable (55,384)            (6,793)               

Prepaid expenses and other assets 201,253           (80,598)             

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (601,022)          222,471            

Unearned revenue (476,879) 409,720            

Accrued compensated absences and 

early termination benefits (375,549)          (191,782)           

Deposits held in custody for others (219)                 (8,405)               

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (37,734,841)$   (38,389,986)$    

Supplemental Disclosure Of Cash Flow Information

Noncash gifts received 1,074,339$      2,014,443$       

Accounts payable incurred for capital asset purchases 1,970,722        904,081            

Gain on disposal of capital assets (342)                 (4,324)               

Unrealized gain on investments (154,841)          2,128,370          
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2018 

 

 

 

1. Nature Of Operations And Summary Of Significant Accounting 

Policies 
 

Nature Of Operations 

Truman State University (the University) is a state-assisted university with its 

campus located in Kirksville, Missouri, operating under the jurisdiction of its 

Board of Governors.  The University is a component unit of the state of Missouri.  

The University is fully accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the 

North Central Association of Colleges and Schools.  The University awards 

graduate and undergraduate degrees from five schools and serves a population of 

approximately 6,300 students. 

 

Reporting Entity 

The University determines its financial reporting entity pursuant to GASB 

Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity as amended by GASB 

Statements No. 61 and No. 80.  As a result of the application of this 

pronouncement, the University includes the Truman State University 

Foundation (the Foundation), a legally separate not-for-profit corporation, as a 

blended component unit within its financial statements.  Representatives of the 

University hold a voting majority of the seats on the Foundation’s Nominating 

Committee, which in turn appoints a voting majority of the members of the 

Foundation’s Board of Trustees.  Additionally, the Foundation provides a 

financial benefit to the University, as the University is able to access the 

Foundation’s resources.  Finally, the Foundation provides services entirely to the 

University.  Accordingly, the University presents the Foundation as a blended 

component unit. 

 

Pursuant to the blended method of component unit presentation, the financial 

data of the Foundation is combined with the financial data of the University 

within these financial statements.  Transactions between the University and the 

Foundation have been eliminated as part of the combination process. 

 

Separately issued financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained by 

calling 660-785-4150, or writing to Truman State University, Attn:  Office of 

Advancement, 100 E. Normal, Kirksville, MO  63501. 
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Basis Of Accounting And Presentation 

The University prepares its financial statements as a business type activity in 
conformity with applicable pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The financial statements of the University have been 
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities from 
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange 
transaction takes place, while those from government-mandated nonexchange 
transactions (principally federal and state grants and state appropriations) are 
recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.  Internal activity 
and balances are eliminated in preparation of the financial statements unless 
they relate to services provided and used internally.  The University first applies 
restricted net position when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
 
Cash Equivalents 

The University considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents.  At June 30, 2018, cash equivalents 
consisted primarily of money market funds. 
 
Investments And Investment Income 

Investments in equity securities, fixed income securities and mutual funds are 
carried at fair value.  Fair value is determined using quoted market prices.  
Investments in nonnegotiable certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements 
are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. 
 
Investment income includes interest income, dividend income, net realized gains 
and losses from the sale of securities, and net unrealized gains and losses that 
represent the change in the fair value of securities for the year.   

 
The Foundation maintains pooled investment accounts for its endowments.  
Investment income and realized and unrealized gains and losses from securities 
in the pooled investment accounts are allocated monthly to the individual 
endowments based on the relationship of the fair value of the interest of each 
endowment to the total fair value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted 
for additions to or deductions from those accounts. 
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Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists mostly of enrollment fee charges to students and 

charges for auxiliary enterprise services provided to students.  Accounts 

receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 

outstanding balances.  Management provides for probable uncollected amounts 

through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its 

assessment of the current status of individual accounts.  Balances that are still 

outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off 

through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. 

 

Inventories 

Inventories consist of farm animals and supplies.  Inventories are stated at the 

lower of cost or market.  Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 

method. 

 
Loans To Students 

The University makes loans to students under various federal and other loan 

programs.  Loans to students are stated at the amount management expects to 

collect from outstanding balances.  Management provides for probable 

uncollected amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation 

allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.  

Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable 

collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and 

a credit to loans to students. 

 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or acquisition value 

at the date of donation if acquired by gift.  Depreciation is computed using the 

straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each asset.  The following 

estimated useful lives are being used by the University: 

 
Land improvements 20 years 

Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years 

Infrastructure 20 years 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 20 years 

Library materials 10 years 

 

The University capitalizes interest costs as a component of construction in 

progress, based on the interest costs of borrowing specifically for the project, net 

of interest earned on investments acquired with the proceeds of the borrowing. 
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All interest costs of $1,655,965 and $1,707,650 incurred in 2018 and 2017, 
respectively, were charged to expense. 
 
Compensated Absences 

University policies permit nonacademic employees to accumulate vacation and 
compensating time benefits that may be realized as paid time off or, in limited 
circumstances, as a cash payment.  Expense and the related liability are 
recognized as vacation benefits when earned, whether the employee is expected 
to realize the benefit as time off or in cash.  Compensated absence liabilities are 
computed using the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the 
statement of net position date plus an additional amount for compensation-
related payments such as social security and Medicare taxes computed using 
rates in effect at that date. 

 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue primarily represents tuition and student fees not earned 
during the current year, as well as advances on grants and contract awards for 
which the University has not met all of the applicable eligibility requirements. 
 
Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Missouri State 
Employees’ Retirement System (MOSERS) and additions to/deductions from 
MOSERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by MOSERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds 
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net Position 

Resources are required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into 
the following three net position categories: 
 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets:  Capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.   
 

 Restricted: 

Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations 

that the University maintain them permanently.  Such assets include the 
Foundation’s permanent endowment funds.   
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Expendable - Net position whose use by the University is subject to the 

externally imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the 
University pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of 
time.   

 

 Unrestricted - Net position that is not subject to externally imposed 

stipulations.  Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific 
purposes by action of management or the Board of Governors or may 
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.  
Approximately $1.5 million in 2018 and 2017 of unrestricted net position is 
designated for academic and research programs and initiatives, and capital 
programs.   
 

Classification Of Revenues 

The University has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating 
revenues according to the following criteria: 

 
Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net 
of scholarship allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises (3) 
certain federal grants and (4) interest on student loans. 

 
Nonoperating revenues - Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of certain nonexchange transactions.  In a nonexchange 
transaction, the University receives value without directly giving equal value 
back, such as with gifts and contributions.  Additionally, certain significant 
revenue relied upon for operations, such as state appropriations, Pell and similar 
funding, federal and state grants, investment income and endowment income, 
are reported as nonoperating revenue. 
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Scholarship Discounts And Allowances 

Student enrollment fee revenues and revenues from auxiliary enterprises are 

reported net of scholarship allowances in the statements of revenues, expenses and 

changes in net position.  Scholarship allowances are the difference between the 

stated charge for goods and services provided by the University, and the amount 

that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ 

behalf.  Certain governmental grants, including federal, state or nongovernmental 

programs, are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues while Pell 

grants are reported as nonoperating revenues in the University’s financial 

statements.  To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy 

tuition, fees, or auxiliary services, the University has recorded a discount and 

allowance.  The total scholarship allowances on enrollment fees for the years ended 

June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 were $26,846,020 and $25,347,127, respectively.  

The total scholarship allowances on fees charged for auxiliary enterprises for the 

years ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 were $1,852,509 and $1,956,215, 

respectively. 

 

Estimates And Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other 

changes in net position during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 

from those estimates. 

 

Income Taxes 

As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is 

generally exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 115(a) of the 

Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and a similar provision of state law.  The 

Foundation is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and 

a similar provision of state law. 

 

Reclassifications 

 

Certain 2017 balances have been reclassified in order to conform with the 

presentation of the 2018 financial statements. 
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Subsequent Events 

Management evaluates subsequent events through the date the financial 

statements are available for issue, which is the date of the Independent Auditors’ 

Report. 

 

 

2. Deposits And Investments  
 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a 

government’s deposits may not be returned to it.  The University’s deposit policy 

for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of Missouri state 

law.  The Foundation’s policy does not currently include that provision. 

 

Missouri state law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal 

depository insurance; bonds and other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. 

Agencies or instrumentalities or the State of Missouri; bonds of any city, county, 

school district or special road district of the State of Missouri; bonds of any state; 

or a surety bond having an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the 

deposits.  As of June 30, 2018, the University’s deposits were properly insured or 

collateralized. 
 

Investments 

The University and Foundation may legally invest in direct obligations of and 

other obligations guaranteed as to principal by the U.S. Treasury and U.S. 

Agencies and instrumentalities, fixed income securities, bankers acceptances, 

commercial paper, corporate bonds, and bank repurchase agreements.  The 

Foundation may also invest in real estate, equity securities and mutual funds. 
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At June 30, 2018, the University and Foundation had the following investments 

and maturities: 

Not More 

Type Fair Value Applicable 0 - 5 6 - 10 Than 10

Cash and cash equivalents 3,927,323$        3,927,323$        —$                 —$                 —$                 

Certificates of deposit 9,264,017              —                      9,264,017       —                   —                   

Domestic equity mutual funds 26,003,236            26,003,236        —                   —                   —                   

Domestic equity securities 79,068                   79,068        —            —                   —                   

Exchange traded notes 855,212                 855,212      —            —                   —                   

Fixed income securities 80,403,436            —                      71,069,459     3,359,499       5,974,478       

Fixed income mutual funds 1,434,513              1,434,513          —            —                   —                   

International equity mutual funds 5,462,830              5,462,830          —            —                   —                   

International equity securities 10,179                   10,179        —            —                   —                   

Real estate mutual funds 964,328                 964,328          —            —                   —                   

Taxable high yield mutual funds 861,899                 861,899             —                   —                   —                   

129,266,041$    39,598,588$      80,333,476$   3,359,499$     5,974,478$     

Maturities In Years

 
 

At June 30, 2017, the University and Foundation had the following investments 

and maturities: 

Not More 

Type Fair Value Applicable 0 - 5 6 - 10 Than 10

Cash and cash equivalents 2,906,824$        2,906,824$        —$                 —$                 —$                 

Certificates of deposit 8,862,202              —                      8,862,202       —                   —                   

Domestic equity mutual funds 23,646,426            23,646,426        —                   —                   —                   

Domestic equity securities 49,566                   49,566        —                   —                   —                   

Exchange traded notes 807,098                 807,098      —                   —                   —                   

Fixed income securities 75,897,333            —               66,164,684     3,994,872       5,737,777       

Fixed income mutual funds 944,099                 944,099      —                   —                   —                   

International equity mutual funds 5,162,741              5,162,741       —                   —                   —                   

International equity securities 7,791                     7,791          —                   —                   —                   

Real estate mutual funds 1,259,127              1,259,127       —                   —                   —                   

Taxable high yield mutual funds 882,111                 882,111             —                   —                   —                   

120,425,318$    35,665,783$      75,026,886$   3,994,872$     5,737,777$     

Maturities In Years
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Interest Rate Risk 

The University’s policy manages interest rate risk by maintaining adequate 

liquidity for short-term cash needs.  The University seeks to avoid the need to 

sell securities prior to maturity by making longer-term investments only with 

funds that are not needed for cash flow purposes; by establishing maximum 

individual investment maturity (or duration) and maximum portfolio average 

maturity (or portfolio limits); and by structuring the investment portfolio so that 

securities mature in time to meet expected cash requirements for ongoing 

operations.  The policy limits the portfolio’s maximum average duration to three 

years. 

 

The Foundation’s policy has no constraint on the maturity of any single fixed 

income security.  However, the dollar weighted average duration of the 

investment grade portion of the portfolio should not exceed a range of +/- 35% of 

that of the fixed income benchmarks for investment grade securities.  The money 

market mutual funds are presented as an investment with a maturity of less 

than one year because they are redeemable in full immediately. 

 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will 

not fulfill its obligations.  The University’s policy limits credit risk by 

establishing minimum credit ratings for each non-government security type; by 

implementing a credit review and approval process or by hiring an outside 

registered investment advisor who has such a process; and by diversifying the 

portfolio to reduce the risk of loss resulting from the over-concentration of assets 

in a specific maturity, issuer, or type of security.   

 

It is the Foundation’s policy to limit its investments in fixed income securities to 

ratings of investment grade or higher at the time of purchase by NRSROs, with 

the exception that up to 25% of the fixed income holdings of the portfolio may be 

rated below investment grade.  At no time, however, shall more than 10% of the 

total portfolio be invested in noninvestment grade (high yield) fixed income 

instruments.   

 

Commercial paper rated A-1, P-1, or the equivalent by at least two nationally 

recognized statistical rating organizations may be held from issuing corporations 

with commercial paper programs with sizes in excess of $500,000,000 as well as 

long term debt ratings, if any, of “A” or better.  Purchases of commercial paper may 

not exceed 270 days to maturity.   
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At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the following ratings were available for the 
University’s and Foundation’s fixed income investments: 
 

Quality Ratings 2018 2017

Treasury/Agency  $     51,276,915  $    46,445,139 

AAA 2,759,926             2,434,892        

AA+ 9,606,228             8,768,459        

AA 1,783,453             2,093,655        

AA- 1,530,987             1,389,735        

A+ 1,917,532             1,984,258        

A 5,768,681             6,564,817        

A- 869,304                523,603              

A-1 1,737,262             2,523,323           

A-1+ 239,692                710,711              

BBB+ 192,428                188,618              

BBB 2,652,781             2,270,123           

B 68,247                  —                        

80,403,436$      75,897,333$    
 

 

Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty, the University or Foundation will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, a governments deposit may not be returned to it.  The University’s 
deposit policy for the custodial credit risk requires compliance with the 
provisions of state law.  Collateralization for the University is required for three 
types of investments: certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and letters 
of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank.  All securities serving as collateral 
shall be kept at a nonaffiliated custodial facility.  The University’s investment in 
bankers acceptances must be issued by domestic banks rated A-1, P-1, or the 
equivalent by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations 
and maturity may not exceed 270 days.   

 



TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued) 

 

 

 

 Page 28 

Concentration Of Credit Risk 

No more than 30% of the University’s portfolio can be invested in callable U.S. 
Government agencies; no more than 50% of the portfolio can be invested in bankers 
acceptances and commercial paper combined; no more than 40% of the portfolio can 
be invested in corporate bonds; no more than 25% of the portfolio can be invested 
in municipal bonds; no more than 10% of the portfolio can be invested in asset-
backed securities; and no more than 20% of the portfolio can be invested in money 
market mutual funds.   
 
The Foundation places certain limits on the amount that may be invested in any 
one issuer.  Investments in any one individual equity security should not exceed 
approximately 10% of the market value of the investment manager portfolio, and 
investment in any one economic sector should not exceed 25% of the market value 
of the investment manager portfolio.  Holdings of any single issue in the portfolio 
should not exceed more than 5% of the total outstanding common stock of any 
one company.  Fixed income securities of any single issuer, with the exception of 
U.S. government and agency securities, are limited to no more than 10% of the 
market value of the fixed income portion of the investment manager’s portfolio.  
Corporate securities are limited to no more than 75% of the market value of the 
fixed income portion of the portfolio.   
 
Within the fixed income portion of the portfolio, allocations to “plus” fixed income 
sectors (such as high yield corporate bonds, high yield bank loans, preferred 
stock, international bonds (denominated in U.S. dollars and non-U.S. dollars) and 
emerging market bonds (denominated in U.S. dollars and non-U.S. dollars) are 
allowed up to a maximum of 30% of the market value of the fixed income portion 
of the portfolio. 
 
At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University’s and Foundation’s combined 
investments in U.S. Treasuries exceeded 5% of the combined investment 
portfolio.   

 
Foreign Currency Risk 

This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment from 
changes in exchange rates.  The University’s investment policy does not address 
foreign currency risk.  The Foundation’s investment policy permits it to hold up 
to 20% of total investments in international equities.  The University and the 
Foundation had no direct investments (mutual funds are not considered direct 
investments) in international equities at June 30, 2018. 
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Summary Of Carrying Values 

The carrying values of deposits and investments are included in the statement of 
net position as follows at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 
 

2018 2017

Carrying value

Deposits 2,151,938$      5,166,478$       

Investments 129,266,041    120,425,318     

131,417,979$  125,591,796$   

Included in the following statement of net

position captions:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,270,479$      3,979,937$       

Restricted cash - current 881,459           1,186,541         

Restricted short-term investments 2,783,055        2,498,678         

Short-term investments 8,965,886        13,532,523       

Long term investments 117,517,100    104,394,117     

131,417,979$  125,591,796$   
 

 

Investment Income 

Investment income for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 consists of: 
 

2018 2017

Interest and dividend income 2,422,338$   1,947,677$    

Net realized and unrealized gains

on investments 1,120,344 2,937,496         

3,542,682$   4,885,173$    
 

 
Fair Value Measurements 

GASB Statement No. 72 sets forth the framework for measuring fair value.  That 
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority 
to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  The three levels of 
the fair value hierarchy under GASB 72 are described as follows:   
 
Level 1:  Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the University and 
Foundation have the ability to access.   
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Level 2:  Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability; 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 

market data by correlation or other means.   

 

Level 3:  Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to 

the fair value measurement.  Unobservable inputs reflect the University’s and 

Foundations’ own assumptions about the inputs market participants would use 

in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk).  Unobservable 

inputs are developed based on the best information available in the 

circumstances and may include the University’s and Foundations’ own data.   

 

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair value by the University 

and Foundation.  When quoted prices in active markets are available, 

investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  The 

University and Foundation’s Level 1 investments primarily consist of 

investments in mutual funds, cash equivalents and equity securities.   

 

The University and Foundation’s investment custodians generally use a multi-

dimensional relational model when determining the value of fixed income 

securities.  Inputs to their pricing models are based on observable market inputs 

in active markets.  The inputs to the pricing models are typically benchmark 

yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads and benchmark 

securities, among others.   
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At June 30, 2018, the University’s and Foundation’s investments were classified 

as follows: 

Type Fair Value 1                       2                    3                    

Cash and cash equivalents 3,927,323$            3,927,323$        —$                 —$      

Domestic equity mutual funds 26,003,236            26,003,236        —                   —                   

Domestic equity securities 79,068                   79,068        —            —                   

Exchange traded notes 855,212                 855,212             —                   —                   

Fixed income securities 80,403,436            —                      80,403,436     —                   

Fixed income mutual funds 1,434,513              1,434,513          —                   —                   

International equity mutual funds 5,462,830              5,462,830          —                   —                   

International equity securities 10,179                   10,179               —                   —                   

Real estate mutual funds 964,328                 964,328             —                   —                   

Taxable high yield mutual funds 861,899                 861,899             —                   —                   

120,002,024$        39,598,588$      80,403,436$   —$      

Fair Value Level

 
 

At June 30, 2017, the University’s and Foundation’s investments were classified as 

follows: 

Type Fair Value 1                       2                    3                    

Cash and cash equivalents 2,906,824$            2,906,824$        —$                 —$      

Domestic equity mutual funds 23,646,426            23,646,426        —                   —                   

Domestic equity securities 49,566                   49,566        —                   —                   

Exchange traded notes 807,098                 807,098      —                   —                   

Fixed income securities 75,897,333            —               75,897,333     —                   

Fixed income mutual funds 944,099                 944,099      —                   —                   

International equity mutual funds 5,162,741              5,162,741       —                   —                   

International equity securities 7,791                     7,791          —                   —                   

Real estate mutual funds 1,259,127              1,259,127       —                   —                   

Taxable high yield mutual funds 882,111                 882,111             —                   —                   

111,563,116$        35,665,783$      75,897,333$   —$      

Fair Value Level
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3. Endowments And Similar Funds 
 

The Board of Directors of the Foundation has established an investment policy 
with the objectives of protecting the principal of the endowment funds and 
maximizing total investment return without assuming extraordinary risks.  It is 
the goal of the Foundation to provide spendable income levels that are reasonably 
stable and sufficient to meet budgetary requirements and to maintain a spending 
rate, currently established on a fund-by-fund basis, which ensures a proper 
balance between the preservation of corpus and enhancement of the purchasing 
power of investment earnings. 
 
In August 2009, the State of Missouri adopted the Uniform Prudent Management 
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).  The Foundation has reviewed the 
provisions of this act and determined (utilizing the criteria prescribed by 
UPMIFA) that declines in the fair value of invested, nonexpendable assets to the 
extent that they exceed the original gift made by the donor (i.e., the assets are 
“underwater”) are not available for spending, until such fair value is re-
established to an amount above the original gift made by the donor.  There were 
no funds that were considered to be underwater at June 30, 2018.  
 
 

4. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was: 
 

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Balance

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable:

Land 15,176,045$     —$                  —$              —$                 15,176,045$      

Art 177,535            —                    —                —                   177,535             

Construction in progress 4,489,184         3,061,871        —                (4,489,184)     3,061,871

Total Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 19,842,764 3,061,871        —                (4,489,184)     18,415,451

Capital Assets, Depreciable:

Buildings and improvements 341,652,527 2,936,059        1,229,173    4,489,184      347,848,597

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 24,522,043 851,703          3,049,741    —                   22,324,005

Library materials 14,977,276 143,355          411,748       —                   14,708,883

Infrastructure 19,683,108 —                    —                —                   19,683,108

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 400,834,954 3,931,117        4,690,662    4,489,184      404,564,593

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and improvements 159,817,388 11,656,365      1,229,173    —                   170,244,580

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 22,260,876 904,433          3,049,741    —                   20,115,568

Library materials 13,161,351 451,115          411,748       —                   13,200,718

Infrastructure 11,323,881 707,284          —                —                   12,031,165

Total Accumulated Depreciation 206,563,496 13,719,197      4,690,662    —                   215,592,031

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 194,271,458 (9,788,080)      —                4,489,184      188,972,562

Total Capital Assets - Net 214,114,222$    (6,726,209)$    —$              —$                 207,388,013$    
 

 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was:  
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Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Balance

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable:

Land 15,176,045$      —$                  —$                —$                  15,176,045$      

Art 177,535             —                    —                  —                    177,535

Construction in progress 1,616,927          4,420,984        —                  (1,548,727)      4,489,184          

Construction in progress - energy contract 10,065,887        —                    —                  (10,065,887)    —                      

Total Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 27,036,394        4,420,984        —                  (11,614,614)    19,842,764        

Capital Assets, Depreciable:

Buildings and improvements 316,420,485      13,757,880      —                  11,474,162      341,652,527      

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 24,562,601 635,141          675,699         —                    24,522,043        

Library materials 14,900,453        157,862          81,039           —                    14,977,276        

Infrastructure 18,717,344        825,312          —                  140,452          19,683,108        

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 374,600,883      15,376,195      756,738         11,614,614      400,834,954      

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and improvements 149,652,802      10,164,586      —                  —                    159,817,388      

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 22,041,632 894,943          675,699         —                    22,260,876        

Library materials 12,740,791        501,599          81,039           —                    13,161,351        

Infrastructure 10,636,277        687,604          —                  —                    11,323,881        

Total Accumulated Depreciation 195,071,502      12,248,732      756,738         —                    206,563,496      

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 179,529,381      3,127,463        —                  11,614,614      194,271,458      

Total Capital Assets - Net 206,565,775$    7,548,447$      —$                —$                  214,114,222$    
 

 

5. Long-Term Liabilities 
 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the 

University for the year ended June 30, 2018: 
 

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Deductions Balance Portion

Bonds and capital leases

Student Housing System Revenue

Bonds - 2016 18,770,000$     —$                   745,000$          18,025,000$     765,000$        

Student Housing System Revenue
Bonds - 2015 11,600,000       —                     505,000            11,095,000       525,000          

Student Housing System Revenue
Bonds - 2013 17,435,000       —                     820,000            16,615,000       845,000          

Total bonds payable 47,805,000       —                     2,070,000         45,735,000       2,135,000       

Unamortized premium on
bonds payable 1,243,141         —                     72,922 1,170,219         72,921            

Total bonds payable plus

unamortized premium 49,048,141       —                     2,142,922         46,905,219       2,207,921       

Capital lease obligations 8,035,734         161,475            863,488            7,333,721         868,083          

Total bonds and capital leases 57,083,875       161,475            3,006,410         54,238,940       3,076,004       

Other noncurrent liabilities

Accrued termination benefits 587,175            —                     310,645            276,530            127,961          

Accrued compensated absences 1,491,013         98,861              163,765            1,426,109         1,032,288       

Annuities and trusts payable 545,442 84,708              18,632              611,518 88,611

Total other noncurrent liabilities 2,623,630         183,569            493,042            2,314,157         1,248,860       

Total noncurrent liabilities 59,707,505$     345,044$          3,499,452$       56,553,097$     4,324,864$     
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The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the 
University for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Deductions Balance Portion

Bonds and capital leases

Student Housing System Revenue

Bonds - 2016 19,495,000$      $                  —  $         725,000  $     18,770,000  $        745,000 

Student Housing System Revenue

Bonds - 2015 12,100,000       —                     500,000            11,600,000       505,000          

Student Housing System Revenue

Bonds - 2013 18,230,000       —                 795,000            17,435,000       820,000          

Total bonds payable 49,825,000       —                     2,020,000         47,805,000       2,070,000       

Unamortized premium on

bonds payable 1,337,137         —                     93,996              1,243,141 72,921            

Total bonds payable plus

unamortized premium 51,162,137       —                     2,113,996         49,048,141       2,142,921       

Capital lease obligations 8,878,597         —                     842,863            8,035,734         851,588          

Total bonds and capital leases 60,040,734       —                     2,956,859         57,083,875       2,994,509       

Other noncurrent liabilities

Accrued termination benefits 755,232 216,257            384,314            587,175            334,845          

Accrued compensated absences 1,514,738         110,853            134,578            1,491,013         1,095,209       

Annuities and trusts payable 603,299 17,061              74,918              545,442            72,857            

Total other noncurrent liabilities 2,873,269         344,171            593,810            2,623,630         1,502,911       

Total noncurrent liabilities 62,914,003$     344,171$          3,550,669$       59,707,505$     4,497,420$     
 

The Foundation has been the recipient of several gift annuities which require future 
payments to the donor or their named beneficiaries.  The assets received from 
donors are recorded at fair value on the date of the gift.  The Foundation has 
recorded a liability at June 30, 2018 and 2017 of $611,518 and $545,442, 
respectively, which represents the present value of the future annuity obligations.  
The liability has been determined using discount rates ranging from approximately 
1% to 7%.  The Foundation has segregated assets in custodial investment 
accounts to fund these obligations.  At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fair value of 
these investments was $1,146,527 and $1,063,191, respectively.   
 

Energy Performance Contract 

In May 2015, the University entered into an Energy Performance Contract with 

Energy Solutions Professionals, LLC (the Contractor).  The project includes the 

installation of various equipment and improvements at the University facilities 
through December 2016.  The total cost of the project was approximately 

$10,100,000.  The Contractor has projected annual savings for the University of 

approximately $1,000,000 per year over a 10-year period.   
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In May 2015, the University entered into a lease purchase agreement to fund the 

energy savings project with a financial institution.  Total acquisition costs for the 

energy equipment and improvements to be funded by the financial institution 

totaled $9,274,600.  The lease is payable over a 10-year period as follows: 
 

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2019 868,083$       131,917$       1,000,000$    

2020 884,897            115,103            1,000,000      

2021 902,037            97,963              1,000,000      

2022 919,509            80,491              1,000,000      

2023 937,319            62,681              1,000,000      

2024-2026 2,672,300         77,700              2,750,000         

7,184,145$    565,855$       7,750,000$    
 

 

Revenue Bonds Payable 

On February 11, 2016, the University issued a series of auxiliary system revenue 

bonds in order to refund the remaining outstanding bonds from the 2008 bond 

issuance.  The principal amount issued, with its related premium, totaled 

$20,588,689 and matures in annual installments through 2036.   

 

The refunding resulted in a decrease in payments to service the new debt versus 

the old debt of $2,583,901, an economic gain of $4,373,351, and a deferred 

amount from refunding of $1,271,533, which is being amortized over the life of 

the new debt. 

 

On May 28, 2015, the University issued a series of auxiliary system revenue 

bonds, in order to refund the remaining outstanding bonds from the 2006 bond 

issuance.  The principal amount issued, with its related premium, totaled 

$12,824,953 and matures in annual installments through 2034.  The refunding 

resulted in a decrease in payments to service the new debt versus the old debt of 

$2,182,006, an economic gain of $1,672,487 and a deferred amount from 

refunding of $225,305.  The deferred amount from refunding is being amortized 

over the life of the new debt.   

 
On April 18, 2013, the University issued a series of auxiliary system revenue 
bonds in order to refund the remaining outstanding bonds from the 2004 bond 
issuance.  The principal amount issued, with its related premium, totaled 
$21,238,831 and matures in annual installments through 2033.   
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The various issues of the auxiliary system revenue bonds are payable, both as to 

principal and interest, solely out of the net income and revenues arising from the 

operation of the auxiliary system and out of any grant-in-aid which may be 

received from any source. 

 

The bonds outstanding bear interest at rates ranging from 2% to 4% per annum 

and are collateralized by a first lien on and pledge of the net revenue derived 

from the operation and ownership of the housing system which includes all 

housing, dining and social facilities owned or operated by the University. 

 

The bond debt service requirements as of June 30, 2018, are as follows: 

 
Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2019 2,135,000$    1,520,184$    3,655,184$    

2020 2,215,000         1,447,684         3,662,684      

2021 2,290,000         1,372,434         3,662,434      

2022 2,365,000         1,294,584         3,659,584      

2023 2,450,000         1,214,134         3,664,134      

2024-2028 13,625,000       4,745,869         18,370,869    

2029-2033 16,030,000       2,375,839         18,405,839    

2034-2038 4,625,000         273,706            4,898,706      

45,735,000$  14,244,434$  59,979,434$  
 

 

 

6. Pension Plans - MOSERS 
 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description.  Benefit eligible employees of the University are provided with 

pensions through Missouri State Employees’ Plan (MSEP) - a cost-sharing 

multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by MOSERS.  The 

plans are referred to as MOSERS in the notes.  Chapter 104.320 of the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri grants the authority to establish a defined benefit plan for 

eligible state and other related University employees.  MOSERS issues an annual 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), a publicly available financial 

report that can be obtained at www.mosers.org. 
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Benefits provided.  MOSERS provides retirement, disability, and life insurance 

benefits to eligible employees.  The base retirement benefits are calculated by 

multiplying the employee’s final average pay by a specific factor multiplied by the 

years of credited service.  The factor is based on the specific plan in which the 

employee participates, which is based on the employee’s hire date.  Information on 

the three plans administered by MOSERS (MSEP, MSEP 2000, and MSEP 2011 

retirement plans) and how eligibility and the benefit amount is determined for 

each plan may be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements of MOSERS’ 

CAFR starting on page 28. 
 

Contributions.  Per Chapter 104.436 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, 

contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating employers 

are established and may be amended by the MOSERS Board.  Employees in the 

MSEP2011 Plan are required to contribute 4.0 percent of their annual pay.  The 

University’s required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2018, was 

19.45 percent of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when 

combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits 

earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 

unfunded accrued liability. 
 

Contributions to the pension plan from the University were $5,973,188 and 

$5,593,856 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, And Deferred Outflows Of Resources 

And Deferred Inflows Of Resources Related To Pensions 
 

At June 30, 2018, the University reported a liability of $87,256,736 for its 

proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was 

measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 

net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The 

total pension liability was offset by the fiduciary net position obtained from 

MOSERS CAFR as of June 30, 2017, to determine net pension liability. 
 

The University’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the 

University’s actual share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the actual 

contributions of all participating employers for MOSERS plan year ended June 30, 

2017.  At the June 30, 2017 measurement date, the University’s proportion was 

1.676 percent, an increase from its proportion measured of 1.674 percent as of the 

June 30, 2016, measurement date. 
 

During the MOSERS plan year ended June 30, 2017, there were changes to MSEP 

2011 benefit provisions that reduced the actuarial accrued liability.  There were no 

other changes in benefit terms during the MOSERS plan year ended June 30, 

2017, that affected the measurement of total pension liability. 
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Actuarial assumptions.  The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial 

valuation, which is also the date of measurement for GASB 68 purposes, was 

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 

included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation 2.5%, approximate 

Salary increases 

Wage inflation 

3.25% to 8.75% including inflation 

3.0% 

Investment rate of 

 return 

7.5%, compounded annually, net after investment expenses 

and including inflation 

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the 

results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 

2015.  In addition, the Board reaffirmed its previous decision to reduce the 

investment return assumption from 7.65% to 7.5% for the June 30, 2017 valuation.  

There were no other changes in assumptions. 
 

Mortality. Mortality rates for post-retirement mortality are based on the RP-2014 

Healthy Annuitant mortality table, projected to 2026 with Scale MP-2015 and 

scaled by 120%.  The pre-retirement mortality table used is the RP-2014 Employee 

mortality table, projected to 2026 with Scale MP-2015 and scaled by 95% for males 

and 90% for females.   
 

Long-term investment rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on 

pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 

best-estimates rates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 

of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major 

asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 

return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 

allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of 

geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in MOSERS 

target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-Term Weighted Average

Policy Expected Real Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Allocation Rate Of Return* Real Rate Of Return

Opportunistic 

global equity 38.0% 5.5% 2.1%

Nominal bonds 44.0% 1.0% 0.5%

Commodities 20.0% 4.5% 0.9%
Inflation-linked 

bonds 39.0% 0.8% 0.3%

Alternative beta 31.0% 4.5% 1.4%

172.0% 5.2%
 

 

* Represent best estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included. 
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Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 

7.5%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 

that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that 

contributions from employers will be made at required rates, actuarially 

determined.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 

was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 

current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 

return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 

payments to determine the total pension liability.  

 

Sensitivity of the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to 

changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the University’s proportionate 

share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well 

as what the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if 

it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5%) or 

1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

 

Sensitivity of the University's proportionate share of the NPL

Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

University's proportionate share of the

 net pension liability 112,345,042$  $87,256,736 66,154,399$  
 

 

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s 

fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued MOSERS financial 

report.  

 

Pension expense. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University 

recognized pension expense of $14,337,516 and $11,239,682, respectively.   
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Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.  At June 30, 2018 

and 2017, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows Of Inflows Of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual 

experience 483,411$       1,374,257$    

Changes of assumptions 7,656,668         218,996            

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 14,616,839       —                      

Changes in proportion and differences 

between University contributions and  

proportionate share of contributions 33,781              767,558            

University contributions subsequent to the

 measurement dates of June 30, 2017 5,973,188 —                      

28,763,887$  2,360,811$    

2018

 
 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows Of Inflows Of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual 

experience 800,502$       227,094$       

Changes of assumptions 8,092,821         467,190            

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 12,699,697       —                      

Changes in proportion and differences 

between University contributions and  

proportionate share of contributions —                      1,258,988         

University contributions subsequent to the

 measurement dates of June 30, 2016 5,593,856 —                      

27,186,876$  1,953,272$    

2017
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The University amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 

pensions resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement 

date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 

June 30, 2019 of the University’s financial statements.  Other amounts reported as 

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

will be recognized in pension expense in the University’s fiscal year following 

MOSERS’ fiscal year as follows: 

 

Amortization Schedule

Plan Year Ending June 30 Amount

2019 6,486,077$    

2020 9,197,952         

2021 3,635,242         

2022 1,110,611         

20,429,882$  
 

 

Payables to the pension plan 

As of June 30, 2018, the University had payables of $458,255 to MOSERS for the 

amount owed for salaries earned but not remitted as of June 30, 2018 due to 

payment terms in employment contracts.   

 

 

7. Retirement Plans - CURP  
 

All faculty on full-time, regular appointment are enrolled in the College and 

University Retirement Plan (CURP) if they have not previously been enrolled in 

MOSERS.  CURP is a noncontributory 401(a) defined contribution retirement 

plan which uses TIAA-CREF as its third-party administrator.  The University is 

required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate was 6.19% and 

5.67% of annual covered payroll for 2018 and 2017, respectively.  The 

University’s contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

were $540,304 and $470,079, respectively, which equaled the required 

contributions for the years.  CURP provides a retirement program which offers 

interstate portability, immediate vesting and no minimum service requirement.  

Contributions made by the University are self-directed by participants into their 

selected individual accounts.  After participating in CURP for at least six years, a 

faculty member may elect to become a member of MOSERS. 
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8. Employee Health And Welfare Benefits 
 

Effective January 1, 2012, the University established a self-insured medical 

program covering substantially all employees.  The University’s liability has been 

limited by the purchase of specific ($150,000 in fiscal year 2018) and aggregate 

($1,000,000 in fiscal year 2018) reinsurance.  The University has recorded a reserve 

for expenses incurred but not reported of $673,045 and $600,405 as of June 30, 2018 

and 2017, respectively, which is included in accrued liabilities on the statement of 

net position. 

 

The liability reported for claims incurred but not reported are based on the 

requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims 

be reported if information obtained prior to the issuance of the financial statements 

indicates it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the 

liability can be reasonably estimated.  Change in the balance of the insurance 

reserve liability during the year ended June 30, 2018 and 20162017 were as 

follows: 

 
Liability, July 1, 2016 438,263$       

Current year claims and changes in estimate 7,391,962         

Claim payments (7,229,820)        

Liability, June 30, 2017 600,405         

Current year claims and changes in estimate 7,624,522         

Claim payments (7,551,882)        

Liability, June 30, 2018 673,045$       
 

 

Total employee health and welfare expense was $6,805,298 and $5,982,149 for 

the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

 

 

9. Early Retiree Termination Benefits 
 

The University pays health insurance premiums for qualified retired employees 
who have chosen to participate in early retirement programs established by the 
Board of Governors until the employee reached the age of 65.  Separate programs 
were established in fiscal years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018.  For 
participants that have not chosen the lump-sum payment method, the University 
has recorded a liability at the present value of the estimated future cash flows for 
the program, which amounted to $276,530 and $587,175 at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. 
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the University paid $167,408 of 
reimbursements under this plan.  Lump sum payments to participants totaled 
$300,000 during 2018.  At June 30, 2018, there were 17 retirees participating in 
the program. 

 
 

10. Commitments And Contingencies 
 

Claims And Litigation 

The University is currently involved in various claims and pending legal actions 
related to matters arising from the ordinary conduct of business.  The University 
administration believes the ultimate disposition of the actions will not have a 
material effect on the financial statements of the University. 

 
Government Grants 

The University is currently participating in numerous grants from various 
departments and agencies of the federal and state governments.  The 
expenditures of grant proceeds must be for allowable and eligible purposes.  
Single audits and audits by the granting department or agency may result in 
requests for reimbursement of unused grant proceeds or disallowed expenditures.  
Upon notification of final approval by the granting department or agency, the 
grants are considered closed. 

 
Construction 

The University had outstanding commitments of $5,720,834 related to 
construction contracts at June 30, 2018.  A remaining commitment of $2,791,237 
on the Missouri Hall Dining Kitchen Project with Sodexo comprises the majority 
of the outstanding construction/architect commitments.  
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Perkins Loan Program 

The University participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program, under which 

loans are provided to eligible students and repayments are made directly to the 

University to provide funding for future eligible participants in the program.  

Effective October 1, 2017, the Department of Education has stipulated that new 

loans may not be disbursed under the program (some limited exceptions to 

continue to award new loans have been made, but are not expected to be 

applicable for the University).  Pursuant to GASB accounting standards, the 

University has recorded previous contributions from the Federal Government for 

this program as revenue (and related restricted net position) in the period that 

the funds were received.  The closure of this program, while not certain or 

determinable at this point, could result in the University recording an obligation 

to refund previous Federal contributions received under this program to the 

Department of Education.   

 
 

11. Risk Management 
 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee 
injuries and illnesses; natural disasters and employee health and accident benefits.  
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters 
other than those related to workers’ compensation and natural disasters.  Settled 
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding 
years.  The State of Missouri self-insures workers’ compensation benefits for all 
state employees, including University employees.  Claims are administered by the 
Missouri Office of Administration, Risk Management Section. 

 

 

12. Segment Information 
 

A segment is an identifiable activity reported within a stand-alone entity for which 

one or more revenue bonds are outstanding.  A segment has a specific identifiable 

revenue stream pledged in support of revenue bonds and has related expenses, 

gains and losses, assets and liabilities that are required by an external party to be 

accounted for separately.  Pursuant to the reporting requirements of GASB 

Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB 

Statements No. 21 and No. 34, the University had one segment at June 30, 2018. 
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The segment consists of Housing System Revenue Bonds Series 2013, dated 

April 18, 2013, and Housing System Revenue Bonds Series 2015, dated May 28, 

2015, and Housing System Revenue Bonds Series 2016, dated February 11, 2016.  

These accounts are established to account for activities of the Housing System, as 

defined by the bond resolutions. 

 

The condensed financial information for the Housing System Revenue Bond Fund 

as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

 

2018 2017

Current Assets 18,106,999$    14,852,970$  

Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets, net of depreciation 78,668,686      81,722,241       

Other 115,555           123,345            

Total Assets 96,891,240      96,698,556       

Deferred Outflows Of Resources 1,367,176        1,445,515         

Current Liabilities 3,693,023        2,442,880         

Noncurrent Liabilities 46,889,186      49,095,440       

Total Liabilities 50,582,209      51,538,320       

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 30,430,245      33,888,207       

Unrestricted 17,245,962      12,717,544       

Total Net Position 47,676,207$    46,605,751$  

Condensed Statement Of Net Position
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2018 2017

Operating Revenue

Housing and food service, net of 

scholarship allowance 21,508,459$    21,066,954$  

Other operating revenues 604,890           647,878

Total Operating Revenue 22,113,349      21,714,832       

Operating Expenses

Compensation and benefits 3,745,461        3,571,062

Supplies and other services 11,260,128 10,605,852

Depreciation 5,651,648        5,302,337

Utilities 1,710,586        1,740,165

Total Operating Expenses 22,367,823      21,219,416       

Operating Income (Loss) (254,474)          495,416            

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

Student fees for capital projects 1,065,164        1,064,190

Investment income 222,764           280,954

Interest on capital asset related debt and other expenses (1,683,239)       (1,788,611)        

Funds received for capital investment 1,864,362        4,434,241         

Other (144,121)          (93,997)             

Net Nonoperating Revenue 1,324,930        3,896,777         

Increase In Net Position 1,070,456        4,392,193         

Net Position - Beginning of Year 46,605,751      42,213,558       

Net Position End Of Year 47,676,207$    46,605,751$  

Condensed Statement Of Revenues,

Expenses And Changes In Net Position

 
 

Condensed Statement Of Cash Flows

2018 2017

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,234,705$      9,255,573$    

Net cash used in capital and related 

financing activities (4,877,269)       (5,697,010)        

Net cash used in investing activities (3,332,442)       (3,591,470)        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  24,994             (32,907)             

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 5,660               38,567              

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 30,654$           5,660$           
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SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE UNIVERSITY’S PROPORTIONATE  

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

MISSOURI STATE EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017 2016 2015 2014

University's proportionate of the net pension

liability 1.676% 1.674% 1.721% 1.736%

University's proportionate share of the net

pension liability 87,256,736$  77,726,342$  55,252,185$  40,938,147$  

University's covered payroll 32,983,265    32,430,791    33,308,792    32,701,587    

University's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 264.55% 239.67% 165.88% 125.19%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension liability 60.41% 63.60% 77.62% 79.49%

June 30,

 
Notes: The above schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be 

displayed as they become available.  The information is based on a measurement date and actuarial 

valuation as of the end of the preceding fiscal year. 
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SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued) 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS 

MISSOURI STATE EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 5,597,262$    5,503,067$   5,652,501$    5,666,746$     

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 5,597,262      5,503,067     5,652,501      5,666,746       

University's covered payroll 32,983,265    32,430,791   33,308,792    32,701,587     

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 16.97% 16.97% 16.97% 17.33%

June 30,

 
 

Notes: The above schedule is intended to show information for ten years.  Additional years will be 

displayed as they become available.  The information is based on a measurement date and actuarial 

valuation as of the end of the preceding fiscal year. 
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NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Changes Of Benefit Terms Or Assumptions 
 

Changes Of Benefit Terms 

Senate Bill 62 (SB 62), which contained changes to the benefit structure for MSEP 

2011, was passed by the 2017 legislature.  The provisions of the bill decreased 

vesting from ten to five years of service, but also included provisions that 

essentially offset the cost of the vesting change.  As a result, SB 62 had no impact 

on the employer contribution rate and created a decrease to the UAAL of $1.6 

million. 

 

Changes Of Assumptions 

MOSERS reduced the investment return assumption used in the June 30, 2017 

valuation to 7.5%. 
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Truman State University Financial Report 

August 31, 2018 compared to August 31, 2017 

Education & General (Pages A1-A3) 
Year-over-year revenues fell by $1.2M 
(3.5%) to $34.1M primarily due to a $1.6M 
tuition shortfall.  While the price of FY19 
tuition was increased by 1%, the loss of 
revenue was the direct result of 419 fewer 
students enrolled for the recent fall semester.  
The revenue distribution over the last three 
fiscal years is outlined in Figure 1.  Overall 
revenues were at 36% of the fiscal 2019 
budget. 
 
State appropriations were unchanged at 
$6.6M.  The aforementioned unfavorable 
tuition variance was partially offset by a 
$273,755 increase in course fees (based on a 
recently revised model).  In addition, health 
clinic fees and other income also grew over 
prior year by $42,057 and $98,283, 
respectively.  The improvement in health 
clinic fees was related to pricing; whereas, 
the increase in other income reflected recent 
transfers from the Truman Foundation for 
ongoing capital projects.  
 
Significant variances in local fee revenue (excluding tuition) are outlined in Figure 2. 
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Course Fees

Figure 2:  Tuition & Fee Variances (FY 18 to FY 19)  

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19

Other $703,033 $719,897 $818,180

State Support $7,385,204 $6,573,420 $6,573,420

Fee Income $27,305,545 $28,012,021 $26,696,388
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Figure 1:  Education & General Revenues 
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Year-over-year expenses fell by $1.9M to 
$19.4M primarily due to a $949,574 
reduction in equipment and capital 
expenditures.  It is important to note that 
prior fiscal year capital spending included 
costs related to Stokes Stadium and the 
associated track & field facilities.  
Expenses over the last three fiscal years 
are outlined in Figure 3. Overall expenses 
were at 19.6% of the fiscal 2019 budget. 
 
Institutional aid fell by $702,024 (6.2%) 
to $10.6M primarily as result of a 
corresponding reduction in freshman 
enrollment. 
 
The University was able to reduce 
salaries by $145,099 (4.6%) by hiring 
replacements at lower costs and by 
reducing the number of overall positions. 
 
Other operating expense variances were 
identified in the following categories:   
 

• Travel expenses fell by $143,046 (36.2%) as a result of reduced study abroad spending and a 
decrease in individual travel expenditures. 

• Supplies expense grew by $113,261 (25.7%) as result of networking purchases of $41,955 
and other non-capitalized equipment purchases of $66,111. 

 
Auxiliary Systems (Pages B1-B3) 
Year-over-year auxiliary revenues fell by 
$937,455 (7%) to $12.4M primarily due 
to an $856,817 shortfall in residence hall 
income.  This revenue variance was 
driven by a reduction in year-over-year 
residency of 235 students. 
 
The revenue distribution over the last 
three fiscal years is outlined in Figure 4.  
Overall revenues were at 49% of the 
fiscal 2019 budget.  
 
In addition to the loss in resident hall 
income, reduced enrollment also 
impacted Student Union and Recreation 
Center fees.  Revenue in these areas fell 
by $35,177 and $47,735, respectively. 
 

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19

Equip & Capital $404,328 $953,443 $3,869

Other Operating $3,478,174 $3,409,830 $3,322,009

Institutional Aid $11,159,987 $11,294,555 $10,592,531

Salaries & Benefits $5,979,909 $5,616,647 $5,499,110
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Figure 3:  Education & General Expenses 
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Other Auxiliary $54,065 $38,431 $40,705

Recreation Center $688,304 $693,119 $645,384

Student Union $579,970 $591,417 $556,240

Residence Halls $11,917,910 $12,052,860 $11,196,043
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Figure 4:  Auxiliary Revenues 
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Expenses fell by $145,728 (3.3%) to $4.3M primarily due to a $151,601 reduction in equipment and 
capital expenditures.  Prior year capital spending included a non-recurring purchase of a dish machine 
for the Student Union at a cost of $141,609.  Overall expenses were at 16.8% of the fiscal 2019 
budget.  Other year-over-year expense variances are outlined in Figure 5.  

 

Truman State University Foundation (Pages C1-C3) 
 

Statement of Net Position (Page C1) 

Fiscal year-to-date 2019 net position was $56.1M (an increase of $5.1M over prior year).  Short term 
assets increased by $46,093 year-over-year to $3.4M.  Long term assets also grew significantly by 
$5.2M to $53.4M.  Long term asset growth was comprised of a $5.2M increase in investments. 
 
Current liabilities of $182,287 were $77,878 greater than prior year due to corresponding increases in 
accounts payable and refundable contributions of $39,277 and $24,411, respectively.  The accounts 
payable variance was due to pending Foundation-funded capital payments that were processed in 
September.  The refundable contributions were associated with the discontinued men’s tennis and 
wrestling teams.  In the event these conditional contributions meet the threshold for funding the 
aforementioned programs, the donations will be reclassified to assets in a future period.  Finally, non-
current liabilities (annuities & trusts payable) grew by $50,321 to $522,907. 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position (Page C2) 

Contributions and additions to permanent endowments were $511,779 (a $195,423 increase over 
prior year).  Fiscal year 2019 investment income (net of fees) was $1.9M compared to $788,157 last 
year.  Interest and dividends grew by $22,673.  Realized gains decreased by $41,612; however, 
unrealized gains grew by $1.1M due to strengthening market conditions and rising interest rates. 
 
Expenses and transfers to other Truman budgets totaled $1.1M this year compared to $715,778 a year 
ago (a $359,996 increase).  Significant increases were in Scholarships ($26,002) and Transfers to 
Truman State University ($333,494).  Transfers consisted primarily of capital projects funded by the 
Foundation including:  the Parents’ Red Barn Pavilion, the Sesquicentennial Plaza and upgrades to 
the Towne Museum.     
 
Investments Schedule (Page C3) 

Investments (including endowments, trusts and annuities) grew by $5.1M to $55.8M. 

 $(150,000)  $(100,000)  $(50,000)  $-  $50,000  $100,000

Institutional Aid

Supplies

Reimb to E & G

Prof Svcs

Maintenance

Other Expense

Meals

Utilities

Figure 5:  Auxiliary Expense Variances (FY 18 to FY 19)  
































































